
  

DESERT WATER AGENCY   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
FEBRUARY 21, 2017                                                            REGULAR MEETING AGENDA                                            
 
REGULAR MEETING   8:00 A.M.   OPERATIONS CENTER - 1200 SOUTH GENE AUTRY TRAIL  – PALM SPRINGS – CALIFORNIA 

About Desert Water Agency: 
Desert Water Agency operates independently of any other local government.  Its autonomous elected board members are directly accountable to the people they serve. The Agency is one of the desert’s 
two State Water Contractors and provides water and resource management, including recycling, for a 325-square-mile area of Western Riverside County, encompassing parts of Cathedral City, Desert 
Hot Springs, outlying Riverside County and Palm Springs. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  A. February 7, 2017  CIOFFI                                            
                                 

3. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   KRAUSE 
 

4. COMMITTEE REPORTS –  A. Executive – February 13, 2017  CIOFFI   
                                                            

                 
5. PUBLIC INPUT:  

Members of the public may comment on any item not listed on the agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Agency.  In addition, members of the public 
may speak on any item listed on the agenda as that item comes up for consideration.  Speakers are requested to keep their comments to no more than 
three (3) minutes.  As provided in the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited from acting on items not listed on the agenda. 
 

6. SECRETARY-TREASURER’S REPORT  - JANUARY                                                                       
  

7. ITEMS FOR ACTION  
A. Request Adoption of Resolution No. 1150 Granting Retirement Status to Michael Abdelnour KRAUSE 
B. Request Adoption of Resolution No. 1151 Concurring in Nomination of Melody McDonald  KRAUSE 
 on ACWA/JPIA Executive Committee 
C. Request Adoption of Resolution No. 1152 Authorizing Investment of Monies in LAIF  KRIEGER 
 and Acknowledging Assignment of Signatories 
D. Request Approval to Augment 2016/2017 Operating & General Funds Budget   KRIEGER 

 
8. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION   

A. January Water Use Reduction Figures KRAUSE 
B. Consider the Consolidation of DWA Board Elections with Statewide Elections RIDDELL       

 
9. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND REQUESTS 

 
10. CLOSED SESSION 

 
 A.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al 
 
 B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al 
 
 C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. Department of Interior 
 
 D. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert Water Agency 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
DWA Board Agenda 
February 21, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 E. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 
  Property: 1.17 acre lot North of the Northeast corner of Sunrise Way and Mesquite Avenue,  
  APN No. 502-560-038 
  Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steve L. Johnson, Asst. General Manager 
  Negotiating Parties: Chris Thomsen, New Mesquite HOA 
  Under Negotiation: Price and terms of possible acquisition 
   
11. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION – REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

 
12. ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person 
with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting is asked to contact Desert Water Agency’s Executive Secretary, at (760) 323-4971, at least 48 working 
hours prior to the meeting to enable the Agency to make reasonable arrangements.  Copies of records provided to Board members which relate to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may 
be obtained from the Agency at the address indicated on the agenda. 



8760 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 02/07/17 

 

   MINUTES   2-A 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

 OF THE  
DESERT WATER AGENCY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

February 7, 2017 
 

DWA Board: James Cioffi, President  ) 
 Joseph K. Stuart, Vice President   )         
 Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
 Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
  Craig A. Ewing, Director ) 
   
DWA Staff: Mark S. Krause, General Manager ) 
 Steve Johnson, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary of the Board ) 
 Ashley Metzger, Outreach & Conserv. Mgr. ) 
 Irene Gaudinez, Human Resources Manager ) 
 Lee Lahtinen, Controller ) 
       
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
  
Public: David Freedman, P.S. Sustainability Comm. ) 
     

Attendance 

17714.  President Cioffi opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join Director Oygar in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
  
17715.  President Cioffi called for approval of the January 6, 2017 
Special Board meeting minutes. 
 
  Director Ewing moved for approval. After a second by Vice 
President Stuart, the minutes were approved as written (Director Oygar 
abstained due to her absence). 
 
  President Cioffi called for approval of the January 17, 2017 
Regular Board meeting minutes. 
  
  Vice President Stuart moved for approval. After a second by 
Director Ewing, the minutes were approved as written. 
 
  President Cioffi called for approval of the January 24, 2017 
Special Board meeting minutes. 
   
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
Approval of 01/06/17 
Special Board Mtg. 
Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approval of 01/17/17 
Regular Board Mtg. 
Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approval of 01/24/17 
Special Board Mtg. 
Minutes 
 
 
 



8761 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 02/07/17 

 
  Vice President Stuart moved for approval. After a second by 
Director Ewing, the minutes were approved as written (Director Oygar 
abstained due to her absence). 
 
17716.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
provide an update on Agency operations. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated on January 30 at approximately 12:40 a.m., 
stand-by responded to a hit fire hydrant on Indian Canyon Drive, north of 
Vista Chino. Staff replaced the hydrant and placed it back in service. The 
water loss was from a fully open 6-inch fire hydrant bury which ran for 
approximately 30 minutes. A police report was filed. 
 
  Mr. Krause provided an update on Whitewater Basin 
deliveries: On February 2, a scheduled increase of 300 cfs was made. Plans 
to continue until the Colorado River Aqueduct scheduled maintenance on 
February 14. Water deliveries are scheduled to be off during this time, 
which should last 28 days. 
 
  Regarding the Whitewater Hydro, Mr. Krause noted it 
produced 220,049 kw during the month of January. It is anticipated to earn 
approximately $20,000, to be shared with CVWD. If it is operational from 
March thru December, we anticipate producing approximately 6,960 mw 
for 2017. This will generate approximately $640,000 in earnings from SCE. 
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Krause noted correspondence from 
SWC regarding the Delta Stewardship Councils development of the Delta 
Levee Investment Strategy was included with his report. 
   
  Mr. Krause reminded everyone that Agency offices will be 
closed on Monday, February 20 for the Presidents’ Day holiday. 
          
  Concluding his report, Mr. Krause noted several meetings and 
activities he participated in during the past several weeks. 
 
17717.  President Cioffi noted the minutes for the February 1, 2017 
Executive Committee were provided in the Board’s packet. 
       
17718.  President Cioffi opened the meeting for public input. 
 
  There being no one from the public wishing to address the 
Board, President Cioffi closed the public comment period. 
 
17719.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
present staff’s request for adoption of Resolution No. 1148 granting 
retirement status to Lee Lahtinen. 
 
 

Approval of 01/24/17 
Minutes (Cont.) 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Report 
 
 
 
Hit Fire Hydrant 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Water Delivery Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Whitewater Hydro 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SWC Official 
Correspondence 
 
 
 
 
DWA Offices Closed – 
Presidents’ Day 
Holiday 
 
General Manager’s 
Meetings & Activities 
 
 
Committee Reports 
Executive 02/01/17 
 
 
 
Public Input 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Items for Action: 
Request Adoption of 
Resolution No. 1148 
Granting Retirement to 
Lee Lahtinen 
 
 



8762 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 02/07/17 

 
  Mr. Krause announced that Mr. Lahtinen is retiring from the 
Agency after 12 years of dedicated service. 
 
  Mr. Lahtinen expressed his appreciation to the Board and 
staff. 
 
  Director Ewing made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 1148. 
After a second by Vice President Stuart, the motion carried unanimously. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1148 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE DESERT WATER AGENCY 
GRANTING RETIREMENT STATUS TO 

LEE LAHTINEN 
 
17720.  President Cioffi called upon Outreach & Conservation 
Manager Metzger to present the civil penalty hearing for water use 
violation. 
 
  Mrs. Metzger noted there have been more than 440 violations 
issued and that recipients have 7 days to request a hearing in writing. Staff 
has received one hearing request for today. The appellant is not present for 
today’s hearing. 
 
  Mrs. Metzger announced the appellant is Gordon Zentner and 
noted the violations: 1) Watering during the rain; and 2) Irrigating during 
restricted hours. The fine is $50 and the reason for appeal is the customer is 
aware of restrictions and has fixed timing of zones. She noted that Mr. 
Zentner has applied for the Agency’s smart controller program. 
   
  Director Oygar made a motion to uphold the appeal; violation 
occurred and waive the penalty. After a second by Vice President Stuart, 
the motion carried unanimously. 
 
17721.  President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to present 
staff’s request for adoption of Resolution No. 1149 supporting the 
nomination of Kathleen J. Tiegs to the office of ACWA/JPIA Executive 
Committee. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated the Board is being asked to consider 
supporting the nomination of Kathleen J. Tiegs, Director of the Cucamonga 
Valley Water District and current President of ACWA to the ACWA/JPIA 
Executive Committee. If the Board concurs in the nomination of Ms. Tiegs, 
it may do so by adopting Resolution No. 1149. Following adoption, staff 
will forward a copy to Cucamonga Valley Water District and ACWA/JPIA 
offices. 
 
 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
Resolution No. 1148 
Lahtinen Retirement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Resolution No. 1148 
Adopted 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Water Use Violation – 
Civil Penalty Hearing 
 
 
 
 
Gordon Zentner 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Uphold 
Appeal/Violation 
Occurred/Waive 
Penalty 
 
 
Request Adoption of 
Resolution No. 1149 
Supporting the 
Nomination of Kathleen 
Tiegs to ACWA/JPIA 
Executive Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8763 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 02/07/17 

 
  President Cioffi noted that Ms. Tiegs will be at the Agency on 
February 16 from 3 – 4 p.m. for “Meet ACWA’s President” event. 
 
  Director Ewing made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 1149. 
President Cioffi seconded the motion, which carried unanimously. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1149 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF DESERT WATER AGENCY CONCURRING 

IN NOMINATION OF KATHLEEN J. TIEGS 
TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE ASSOCIATION 

OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES JOINT POWERS 
INSURANCE AUTHORITY (ACWA JPIA)  

 
17722.  President Cioffi asked Outreach & Conservation Manager 
Metzger to present staff’s request for authorization for the General Manager 
to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Western 
Municipal Water District (WMWD) for freesprinklers.com program. 
 
  Mrs. Metzger explained to date, DWA has not offered a free 
sprinkler nozzle program. The FreeSprinklerNozzles.com program is a web 
administered voucher program for free high efficiency sprinkler nozzles 
created and offered by WMWD. Customers can receive: 1) Up to 25 free 
nozzles for single-family customers; 2) Up to 100 free nozzles for 
commercial customers; and 3) Special vouchers available for site needs as 
approved by the Agency. She then explained the registration process. 
 
  Continuing her report, Mrs. Metzger stated that WMWD 
requires a $20,000 budget level for the program for the next 12 months. 
Staff has budgeted sufficient funds in the 2016-207 budget under Other 
Conservation Programs, but this cost could be covered by a contribution 
from CPV Sentinel and/or penalty fees collected to date. Staff recommends 
that the Board authorize the General Manager to enter into a MOU with 
WMWD for the next twelve months with a maximum budget of $20,000. 
This would allow DWA to put about 5,000 nozzles in place for a savings of 
about 7 million gallons or 21.5 AF per year. 
 
  Responding to Director Ewing, Mrs. Metzger stated that 
Section 10 of the MOU discusses customer data confidentiality. 
 
  Director Ewing made a motion to approve staff’s 
recommendation. Director Oygar seconded the motion, which carried 
unanimously. 
 
17723.  President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to present 
staff’s request to enter into an agreement with Metropolitan Water District 
(MWD) and Coachella Valley Water District (CVWD) for Article 21 
Water. 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Resolution No. 1149 
Adopted  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request Auth. for GM 
to enter into MOU with 
WMWD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request Authorization 
to Enter into an 
Agreement with MWD 
& CVWD for Article 
21 Water 



8764 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 02/07/17 

 
  Mr. Krause stated on January 25, the Agency received a 
notice from the Department of Water Resources (DWR) regarding the 2017 
Article 21 Water Program. The notice advised that DWR was offering 
interested Contractors who signed the Monterey Agreement the opportunity 
to participate in the purchase of Article 21 Water, which may become 
available later in 2017. Staff executed and returned the notice, which 
indicated the Agency’s acceptance of the criteria, procedures and charges 
established for this program. 
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Krause explained that DWR will 
make Article 21 Water available by February 10. MWD cannot take 
immediate delivery but anticipates it will be able to do so in mid-March. 
MWD has agreed to deliver Article 21 Water to DWA and CVWD under 
certain conditions. The primary condition is that delivery must not interfere 
with MWD’s operations or delivery of Table A to its member agencies. 
DWA’s Article 21 delivery will most likely be between 0-2,500 acre-feet. 
The cost of the water only includes transportation costs ($320/a.f.). This 
water will cost approximately 50% of a Table A delivery. A letter 
agreement defining the terms between the agencies is being prepared by 
MWD for execution. Staff requests Board authorization to participate in the 
2017 Article 21 Water Program. Staff also requests authorization for the 
General Manager to execute a letter agreement with MWD for the exchange 
delivery of 2017 Article 21 Water. 
 
  President Cioffi made a motion to approve staff’s 
recommendation. After a second by Director Ewing, the motion carried 
unanimously. 
  
17724.  President Cioffi asked Outreach & Conservation Manager 
Metzger to report on the Conservation Program Update. 
 
  Mrs. Metzger provided a PowerPoint presentation which 
included progress on current conservation programs: 1) Replaced 167 
toilets, 2) Installed 116 smart controllers, 3) Approved 331,844 square feet 
of turf replacement (Total water savings of 69,722,939 gallons/year, or 213 
af/year),  and 4) 440 penalties issued to date ($35,200 in funds collected), 5) 
CPV Sentinel partnership (committed $100,000 for 2017). 
 
  Continuing her presentation, Mrs. Metzger stated an 
alternative smart controller program is being considered. Staff is looking 
into “in-store placement” from local hardware & irrigation supply stores. 
 
17725.  President Cioffi asked Agency Counsel Riddell to provide a 
report on the January 19, 2017 meeting of the Board of Directors of the 
State Water Contractors, Inc. 
 
 
 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
Request Auth. to Enter 
into Agrmt. MWD & 
CVWD for Article 21 
Water 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Discussion Items: 
Conservation Program 
Update Presentation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
State Water Contractors 
Meeting – 01/19/17 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8765 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 02/07/17 

 
  Mr. Riddell provided a report on the following items: 1) 
Board Action Items, 2) Water Supply Report, 3) DWR Report on SWP 
Water Operations, 4) General Manager’s Report, 5) Revisions to SWC 
Bylaws, and 6) Report on Energy Objectives. 
 
17726.  President Cioffi noted that Board packets included Outreach 
& Conservation reports for January 2017. 
 
  Mrs. Metzger announced the following upcoming events: 1) 
ACWA’s Meet the President on February 16 3:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m. at 
DWA, 2) Four Seasons HOA Annual Meeting on February 22 at 5:00 p.m., 
3) PSNIC on March 25 11:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m., and 4) Desert Garden Tour 
on March 26 12:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m. starting at DWA. 
 
17727.  Director Ewing announced that he would not be present for 
the March 21 (NWRA conference) April 18 and May 2 Board meetings. 
 
  President Cioffi announced that he will be out of the country 
for the March 21 Board meeting. 
 
  Director Oygar requested discussion/information on SB415 be 
placed on the February 21 Board agenda. 
 
  Agency Counsel Riddell explained that SB415 was enacted in 
2016 and will apply to elections after January 1, 2018. It would affect odd 
numbered elections where voter turnout is more than 25% less than the 
average turnout of the last four statewide elections, requiring a move to 
even year elections. 
 
  In response to President Cioffi, Assistant Secretary of the 
Board Baca stated she has inquired to the County Registrar and is waiting 
for their analysis. 
 
17728.  At 9:26 a.m., President Cioffi convened into Closed Session 
for the purpose of Conference with Legal Counsel, (A) Existing Litigation, 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Agua Caliente Band 
of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al; (B) Existing 
Litigation, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), ACBCI 
vs. County of Riverside, et al; (C) Existing  Litigation, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. 
Department of Interior; (D) Existing Litigation, pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert 
Water Agency;  (E) Real Property Negotiators, pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.8, Property-APN 502-560-038, Agency Negotiators: 
Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steven L. Johnson, Assistant 
General Manager, Negotiating Parties: Chris Thomsen, New Mesquite 
HOA, Under Negotiation: Price and terms of possible acquisition; (F) Real 
Property Negotiators, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8, 

Discussion Items: 
(Cont.) 
SWC Mtg. 01/19/17 
 
 
 
 
Outreach & 
Conservation – 
January 2017 
 
 
Upcoming Events 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Directors 
Comments/Requests 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Closed Session: 
A. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. CVWD, et 
al.  
B. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. Riverside 
County 
C. Existing Litigation – 
DWA vs. U.S. Dept. of 
Interior 
D. Existing Litigation – 
MSWD vs. DWA 
E. Real Property 
Negotiators  
F. Real Property 
Negotiators 
G. Public Employee 
Performance 
 
 
 



8766 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 02/07/17 

 
Property-APN 504-260-026 and portions of APN No. 504-260-025 and 
504-260-027, Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager and 
Steven L. Johnson, Assistant General Manager, Negotiating Parties: Ayres 
Advisors, Under Negotiation: Price and terms; and (G) Public Employee 
Performance Evaluation, pursuant to Government Code Section 54957, 
Title: General Manager. 
 
17729.  At 11:16 a.m., President Cioffi reconvened the meeting into 
open session and announced there was no reportable action for Items 10-A 
thru 10-F. 
 
  Regarding Item 6-B and 10-G, President Cioffi stated a 
performance evaluation was conducted for General Manager Krause. 
   
  Director Ewing then made a motion to approve a second 
amendment to the General Manager’s employment agreement with a 4% 
salary increase and a 4% bonus. Vice President Stuart seconded the motion, 
which carried unanimously. 
 
17730.  In the absence of any further business, President Cioffi 
adjourned the meeting at 11:17 a.m. 
  
  

                                         ____________________________________ 
                                         James Cioffi, President                                  

 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 

Closed Session: 
(Cont.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reconvene –No 
Reportable Action 
 
 
 
 
Reportable Action 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  



3 

Page 1 of 4 

 

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

FEBRUARY 21, 2017 
 

  
 
 

Oroville Dam Status 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
          

 
 



Page 2 of 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



Page 3 of 4 

 

 
 
 

Water Delivery Update 
Whitewater Basin Water Deliveries: 
On February 15 at 3:00 p.m., deliveries to the Whitewater Hydro were stopped as part of the CRA 
maintenance schedule.    
Water deliveries will resume in mid-March and are scheduled to last the remainder of the year for 
a total delivery of 300,000 acre-feet. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 4 

 

 
 

General Manager’s Meetings and Activities 
 
Meetings: 
 
02/09/2017 SWC Operations Committee Conf. Call 
02/13/2017 SWC Oroville Spillway Damage Update Conf. Call 
02/13/2017 Executive Committee Meeting DWA 
02/14/2017 Met With Local Representatives, Stone, Mayes & Garcia  Sacramento 
02/15/2017 SWC Delta Committee Meetings Sacramento 
02/16/2017 SWC Monthly Board Meeting Sacramento 
02/16/2017 SFCWA Monthly Board Meeting Sacramento 
02/16/2017 Sites Reservoir Agreement Committee Meeting Sacramento/Maxwell 
02/17/2017 SWC Water Operations Committee Conf. Call 
   
   

   
   
   
   

 
Activities: 
 

1) Sites Reservoir Agreement 
2) E-Billing – Completed and now tracking 
3) Outreach Talking Points – KMIR 
4) Snow Creek Hydro SCE contract extension - ongoing 
5) Whitewater Hydro – Developing new administration procedures 
6) State and Federal Contractors Water Authority and Delta Specific Project Committee 

(Standing) 
7) Property Acquisition - New Mesquite HOA – Ongoing 
8) MSWD Lawsuit – Ongoing 
9) ACBCI Section 14 Facilities & Easements 
10) CPV Agreement Amendment 
11) Chain of Title 
12) Budget Augmentation 
13) Replacement Pipelines 2016-2017 
14) Letter to Eduardo Garcia’s Office 
15) DWA/CVWD/MWD Operations Coordination 
16) DWA/CVWD/MWD Agreements Update 
17) Recycled Water Effluent Reservoir Coating Failures 
18) Meetings with Local Representatives in Sacramento with Ashley and Bob Reeb 
19) SWP 2017 Water Supply 
20) DWA Credit Card Payment Costs 
21) ACBCI Law Suits 
22) Lake Perris Dam Remediation 

 
 

 



























7-A 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
FEBRUARY 21, 2017 

 
 
 
RE: REQUEST ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 1150, GRANTING 

RETIREMENT STATUS TO MICHAEL ABDELNOUR WITH 
APPRECIATION 

  
Attached is a copy of Resolution No. 1150 officially granting retirement status to 
Water Operations Supervisor, Michael Abdelnour. 
 
Mr. Abdelnour will be presented a copy of Resolution No. 1150 acknowledging 
his 32 years of dedicated service and loyalty to Desert Water Agency. 
 
 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 1150 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

OF THE DESERT WATER AGENCY 
GRANTING RETIREMENT STATUS TO 

MICHAEL J. ABDELNOUR 
 
 WHEREAS, Michael J. Abdelnour (“Mike”), began his service with Desert Water Agency on August 24, 
1984  as a Water Service Worker in the Construction Department.  On March 18, 1987, he was promoted to the 
position of Water Service Worker II and on July 11, 1988 he transferred to the Operations Department as an 
Operations Mechanic I.  He was promoted to Operations Mechanic II on September 9, 1992, Operations Technician 
III on January 24, 2005 and Water Operations Supervisor on May 15, 2008; and is concluding his career in that 
capacity; and  
 
 WHEREAS, over his 32 year career with Desert Water Agency, Mike has always taken it upon himself to 
look at innovative ways to improve upon operations and his ideas have helped the Agency implement more 
efficient and cost-effective methods; and 
 

WHEREAS, Mike has supervised the employees of the Operations Department well and to the best of his 
ability, and has done a commendable job with respect to organizing and scheduling the day-to-day activities of the 
Operations Department and all the related system maintenance, monitoring and implementation of the 2012 
SCADA system upgrade and communication equipment needed to provide water to our community; and  

 
WHEREAS, Mike has been responsible for the oversight of our recycled water plant, solar facility, two 

hydroelectric plants, 30 pumping plants, 25 reservoirs, 13 booster stations and 2 sewer lift stations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Mike has faithfully discharged his duties as the Agency’s Water Operations Supervisor, and 
has gone above and beyond with respect to giving of his time to make sure the Desert Water Agency is able to 
provide a safe and reliable water supply to its customers; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Desert Water Agency is deeply appreciative of this employee’s loyalty, honesty, integrity, 
competency and conscientious service in his duties, and  his willingness to assist others whenever necessary for the 
completion of a project or special assignment, and  
 
 WHEREAS, Mike has served as an outstanding role model with respect to his work ethics and has 
consistently performed his duties meticulously and with commitment to the highest standards required in 
conjunction with the responsibilities he fulfilled, and has done so with the Agency’s best interest in mind;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Desert Water Agency Board of Directors that  
 

MICHAEL J. ABDELNOUR 
 
 is, with infinite thanks and appreciation for his 32 years of service to the Desert Water Agency, and our 
community, hereby granted the status of retirement.   It is the wish of the Board that Mike spends countless years 
enjoying a happy and healthy retirement, for he has earned it.  
 
 ADOPTED this 21st day of February, 2017, with retirement effective February 25, 2017. 
 
 

                    
       James Cioffi, President 
       Board of Directors 

ATTEST: 
 
          
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 
Board of Directors                                                       



Krause 022117 resosupportmcdonaldacwajpia  

7-B 
 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
FEBRUARY 21, 2017 

 
 
 
RE: REQUEST ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 1151 SUPPORTING  
 THE NOMINATION OF MELODY MCDONALD TO THE OFFICE OF 

ACWA/JPIA EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 
 
Attached for the Board’s consideration is Resolution No. 1151, which supports  
the nomination of Melody McDonald, Director of the San Bernardino Valley Water 
Conservation District and current member of ACWA/JPIA Executive Committee.   
 
Also attached is ACWA/JPIA’s election notice and a copy of Ms. McDonald’s bio.  
 
If the Board concurs in the nomination of Ms. McDonald to the office of 
ACWA/JPIA Executive Committee, it may do so by adopting Resolution No. 
1151. Following adoption, staff will forward a copy of the resolution to San 
Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District and ACWA/JPIA offices.  
 
 
 









 
 
 

ACWA JPIA | P.O. Box 619082, Roseville, CA 95661 | 800.231.5742 | www.acwajpia.com 

 

To: JPIA Directors, Alternates, and Others 

From: Sylvia Robinson, Publications & Web Editor 

Date: January 3, 2017 

Subject: 2017 ACWA JPIA Executive Committee Election Notice 
 
Notice is hereby given that there will be an Executive Committee election during the JPIA’s 
Board of Directors’ meeting to be held on May 8, 2017, at the spring conference in Monterey, 
California. 
 
This election will fill four Executive Committee member positions, each for a four-year term 
each. 
 
The incumbents are Tom Cuquet, South Sutter WD; David Drake, Rincon Del Diablo MWD; and 
Melody McDonald, San Bernardino Valley WCD. There is one vacant position. 
 
Candidates for the election must be elected or appointed directors of the JPIA member that they 
represent and must have been appointed by that member to be on the JPIA's Board of 
Directors. Further, candidates for the election must also be representatives of JPIA members 
that participate in all four of the JPIA’s Programs: Liability, Property, Workers’ Compensation, 
and Employee Benefits. 
 
The candidates must also each receive concurring in nomination resolutions from three other 
JPIA members. However, JPIA members may concur in the nomination of as many candidates 
as they wish. When asking other JPIA members to concur in a nomination, it would be helpful to 
them to include some information about the Director and his/her background. 
 
The submission of the nominating resolution, the three concurring in nomination resolutions, 
and the candidate's statement of qualifications is the sole responsibility of the nominating 
member. These nominations must reach the JPIA by the close of business (4:30 pm) on 
Friday, March 24, 2017. Nominations may be mailed to the attention of Sylvia Robinson at the 
JPIA: P. O. Box 619082, Roseville, CA 95661-9082 or emailed to srobinson@acwajpia.com. 

 
Final notice of the qualified candidates will be included as part of the Board of Directors’ 
meeting packet, which will be mailed on or before April 24, 2017, to those who request a 
meeting packet.  
 
Use this link to find copies of this notice, the nominating procedures, and sample resolutions on 
the JPIA’s website. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 1151 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF  
DESERT WATER AGENCY CONCURRING  

IN NOMINATION OF MELODY MCDONALD 
TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE  

ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES 
JOINT POWERS INSURANCE AUTHORITY ("ACWA JPIA") 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Desert Water Agency is a member district of the ACWA JPIA; and 

 WHEREAS, the Bylaws of the ACWA JPIA provide that in order for a nomination to be made 

to ACWA JPIA's Executive Committee, three member districts must concur with the nominating 

district, and 

 WHEREAS, another ACWA JPIA member district, the San Bernardino Valley Water 

Conservation District has requested that Desert Water Agency concur in its nomination of its member of 

the ACWA JPIA Board of Directors to the Executive Committee of the ACWA JPIA; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the  

Desert Water Agency that this district concur with the nomination of Melody McDonald of San 

Bernardino Valley Water Conservation District to the Executive Committee of the ACWA JPIA. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the District Secretary is hereby requested to transmit a 

certified copy of this resolution to the ACWA JPIA at P.O. Box 619082, Roseville, CA 95661-9082, 

forthwith. 

 ADOPTED this 21st day of February, 2017. 
 

 
   ___________________________________ 

           James Cioffi, President 
              Board of Directors 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 
Board of Directors 



Krieger Reso – LAIF DWA signers 

7-C 
 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
FEBRUARY 21, 2017 

 
 

RE: REQUEST ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 1152 AUTHORIZING THE 
INVESTMENT OF MONIES IN THE LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND 
(LAIF) AND ACKNOWLEDGING ASSIGNMENT OF SIGNATORIES 

 
Attached for the Board’s review is a copy of Resolution No. 1152, which 
acknowledges the Desert Water Agency’s account with the State Local Agency 
Investment Fund (LAIF) for investment purposes, and designates the authorized 
signers for that account.   
 
The Agency established an account with LAIF in 1977, and has been actively making 
investments since that time.  Due to the retirement of Controller, Lee Lahtinen, it is 
necessary to update signers on the account.  As noted within the resolution, General 
Manager Mark S. Krause, Assistant General Manager Steve Johnson, Finance 
Director Martin Krieger and Accounting Supervisor Esther Saenz are the authorized 
signers on the account.  Changes with regard to signers do not require an update to 
the existing resolution; however, a new resolution is necessitated with the addition or 
deletion of signers. 
 
Upon adoption of Resolution No. 1152, a certified copy will be provided to LAIF in 
order to update the Agency’s account.    
 
 



 

RESOLUTION NO.  1152 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE DESERT WATER AGENCY  

AUTHORIZING INVESTMENT OF MONIES IN THE  
LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND  

 
  WHEREAS, Pursuant to Chapter 730 of the statutes of 1976 Section 16429.1 was 
added to the California Government Code to create a Local Agency Investment Fund in the State 
Treasury for the deposit of money of a local agency for purposes of investment by the State 
Treasurer; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the Desert Water Agency Board of Directors does hereby find that the 
deposit and withdrawal of money in the Local Agency Investment Fund in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 16429.1 of the Government Code for the purpose of investment as stated 
therein as in the best interests of the Agency, 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Desert Water Agency Board of 

Directors does hereby authorize the deposit and withdrawal of Agency monies in the Local Agency 
Investment Fund in the State Treasury in accordance with the provisions of Section 16429.1 of the 
Government Code for the purpose of investment as stated therein, and verification by the State 
Treasurer’s Office of all banking information provided in that regard. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the following individuals or their successors in 

office shall be authorized to order the deposit or withdrawal of monies in the Local Agency 
Investment Fund: 
 

Mark S. Krause – General Manager 
Steve Johnson - Assistant General Manager 

Martin S. Krieger – Finance Director 
Esther Saenz – Accounting Supervisor 

 
  ADOPTED this 21st day of February, 2017. 
    
       __________________________________ 
       James Cioffi, President 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 
 

 



7-D 
 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
FEBRUARY 21, 2017 

 
 

RE: REQUEST TO AUGMENT 2016/2017 BUDGET 
 
With the rate adjustments that were implemented on January 1, 2017, it is necessary 
at this time to augment the 2016/2017 Operating Budget to reflect those adjustments. 
Rate adjustments were made to the monthly fixed meter charges and monthly fire 
service charges. 
 
The attached augmented Operating Fund Budget reflects an increase of $534,000 to 
the Water Sales line item (volumetric & fixed charges included in this category) and 
an increase of $52,500 to the Fire Protection line item. The total estimated revenue 
due to the adjustments is $587,500 (January 1 through June 30). 
 
Additionally, it is necessary to augment (increase) the Maintenance of Mains expense 
by $575,000 to perform the City of Palm Springs valve can adjustments (approved 
prior & current year work). The net effect of the revenue & expense augmentation is a 
positive $11,500. Staff has increased the Contingency Work Order (16-499) by 
$11,500 to offset the costs associated with Email Server upgrades. 
 
It is also necessary at this time to augment the 2016/2017 General Fund budget to 
reflect the addition of the Indio Subbasin Management Plan expense in the amount of 
$30,000. This item was not previously anticipated during the 2016/2017 budget 
process. In order to recognize the additional expense, the Reserve for Operations is 
being reduced by $30,000. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the augmented 2016/2017 Operating & General Fund 
Budgets. 
 
 



8-A 

Page 1 of 2 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
FEBRUARY 21, 2017 

 
RE: JANUARY 2017 WATER USE REDUCTION FIGURES 
 
Desert Water Agency and its customers achieved a 29 percent reduction in potable 
water production during January 2017 compared to the same month in 2013 – the 
baseline year used by the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) to 
measure statewide conservation achievements. In January, Palm Springs saw 3.53 
inches of rain (NOAA, NOW Data). Staff believes that precipitation was a large factor in 
high conservation numbers across the valley. Desert Water Agency’s cumulative water 
savings June 2015 through January 2017 is 24% percent. DWA reports its production to 
the state on a monthly basis.  

 
Staff is also tracking the water use compared to the threshold in the rate study 
regarding the proposed drought surcharge. The first trigger for the Board to consider 
action would be at use 10% below April 2015 – March 2016 levels. This trigger was met 
for January, though only for a single month. 

DWA is asking its customers to save 10-13% compared to 2013 to help achieve long-
term sustainability. The cumulative savings beginning in June of 2016 when we put our 
10-13% target in place is 20%. 

40 

30 29 

24 
21 

28 

9.5 10 

15 

23 23 

39 

33 

22 
18.5 

8 

16 

21 

14 

29 

Savings and Targets 
Percent saved Cumulative

36% 
32% 

10-13% 

Restrictions 



  

Page 2 of 2 
 

Below is additional information reported to the State Board for December 2016.  
January 2017 water production  1,449.6 AF 

January 2013 water production  2,040.3 AF 

Percent changed per drought surcharge baseline 11.26% 

Quantity of potable water delivered for all commercial, industrial, 
and institutional users for the reporting month 

476.4 AF 

The percentage of the Total Monthly Potable Water Production 
going to residential use only for the reporting month 

62.5% 

Population (inclusive of seasonal residents) 105,817 

Estimated R-GPCD  90.0 

How many public complaints of water waste or violation of 
conservation rules were received during the reporting month? 

9 

How many contacts (written/ verbal) were made with customers for 
actual/ alleged water waste or for a violation of conservation rules? 

15 

How many formal warning actions (e.g.: written notifications, 
warning letters, door hangers) were issued for water waste or for a 
violation of conservation rules? 

14 

How many penalties were issued for water waste or for a violation 
of conservation rules? 

10 

Comments: The Agency’s service area is highly seasonal making population analysis a 
complex task. The State Water Resources Control Board (State Board) analyzes data on 
a per capita basis. Historically, DWA has submitted data based on the permanent 
population of the service area; however that data does not accurately reflect water use in 
DWA’s service area which has a highly seasonal population. Based on local data, the 
correct population is higher than previously reported. The Residential Gallons Per Capita 
Per Day (R-GPCD) is being submitted using the corrected population.  

DWA would like it noted that the amount of fresh water outflow to the ocean during the 
month of December was 5,825,397 acre feet. 

Additionally, since it began recycling water Desert Water Agency has reclaimed 90,564 
acre feet. If our recycled water production for December was taken into consideration 
against our potable production, the conservation achieved would have been several 
percentage points higher. 
 



8-B 

BOARD/STAFF REPORTS/BBK 

 
 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
FEBRUARY 21, 2017 

 
 
RE: CONSIDER CONSOLIDATION OF DWA BOARD ELECTIONS 
 WITH STATEWIDE ELECTIONS 
 
 
Senate Bill 415, The Voter Participation Act will take effect on January 1, 2018. The Act 
prohibits a political subdivision such as a special district from holding an election other 
than on a statewide election date if holding an election on a non-concurrent date has 
previously resulted in voter turnout for a regularly scheduled election in the political 
subdivision being at least 25% less than the average voter turnout within the political 
subdivision for the previous 4 statewide general elections. 
 
If the change in election date is approved, it is requested that the new election date be 
moved from November 2017 to November 2018 with Board Members whose terms 
would have expired in 2017 being extended to 2018 and Board Members whose terms 
would have expired in 2019 being extended to 2020 (see attached). 
 
For other special districts that have changed their election dates, the Riverside County 
Registrar of Voters office indicated that there would be cost savings from aligning the 
current election schedule with the statewide general elections. At this time, staff has not 
received any information back from the County Registrar. It is anticipated that 
information will be received in time for the next Board meeting of March 7. 
 
Elections Code Section 10404(i) states that those governing body members whose 
terms of office would have, prior to the adoption of the resolution, expired prior to that 
election shall, instead, continue in their offices until their successors are elected and 
qualified, but in no event shall the term be extended beyond December 31 of the year 
following the year in which the request for consolidation is approved by the board of 
supervisors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Current General Municipal Election Dates 

(3 seats) 
Consolidate with the following potential 
Statewide Election Dates 

November 7, 2017 
 
James Cioffi 
Patricia G. Oygar 
Joseph K. Stuart 

November 6, 2018 (+12 months) 

 
 
 
Current General Municipal Election Dates 

(2 seats) 
Consolidate with the following potential 
Statewide Election Dates 

November 5, 2019 
 
Kristin Bloomer 
Craig A. Ewing 

November 3, 2020 (+12 months) 

 
 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1153 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
DESERT WATER AGENCY CHANGING THE REGULAR 
ELECTION DATE FOR ELECTION OF ITS BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS FROM NOVEMBER OF ODD-NUMBERED 
YEARS TO THE STATEWIDE PRIMARY ELECTION 
DATE IN NOVEMBER OF EVEN-NUMBERED YEARS 

WHEREAS, currently the regular election date for election of the Board of Directors of 
Desert Water Agency is in November of each odd-numbered year; and  

WHEREAS, the California Voter Participation Rights Act (SB 415) becomes effective 
on January 1, 2018 and prohibits local governmental entities, including special districts, from 
holding a regular election on a date other than on a statewide primary or general election date of 
even-numbered years, if holding a regular election on a non-statewide election date has 
previously resulted in a “significant decrease in voter turnout,” which is defined by SB 415 to 
mean at least 25% less voter turnout than the average voter turnout within the governmental 
entity for the previous four statewide general elections (November of 2010, 2012, 2014 and 
2016); and  

WHEREAS, elections conducted in odd-numbered years historically have resulted in 
lower voter participation and higher expenses to this Agency; and  

WHEREAS, in order to change this Agency’s regular election date to comply with SB 
415, Elections Code Section 1303(b) authorizes the Board of Directors at this time to adopt a 
resolution changing the Agency’s regular election date from November of odd-numbered years 
to the statewide general election date in November of even-numbered years; and 

WHEREAS, the resolution must then be submitted to the Riverside County Board of 
Supervisors no later than March 12, 2017, which is at least 240 days before the next Agency 
regular election date, and the resolution must be approved by the Board of Supervisors in order 
to change the Agency’s regular election date; and 

WHEREAS, it is the intent and desire of this Board of Directors to change the Agency’s 
regular election date for election of its Board of Directors from November of odd-numbered 
years to the statewide general election date in November of even-numbered years; and 

WHEREAS, Elections Code Section 10404(i) provides that upon approval by the Board 
of Supervisors, changing the regular election date to November of even-numbered years, current 
Directors continue to serve until their positions are filled by election in the even-numbered year, 
so as to match their terms with a changed regular election date; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Desert Water 
Agency as follows: 

1. Pursuant to Elections Code Sections 1303(b) and 10404(b), the Agency hereby 
chooses to change the Agency’s regular election date for election of the Board of Directors from 



 

 -2-  

the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November of odd-numbered years to the statewide 
general election date on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November of even-numbered 
years.  

2. Special elections called for the purposes of filling Board vacancies, submitting 
measures to the Agency’s electors for consideration, or other such matters, shall not be affected 
by this resolution and may be conducted on any date authorized by applicable law. 

3. The Riverside County Board of Supervisors is hereby requested to consolidate all 
future Agency regular elections with the statewide general elections to be conducted in 
November of even-numbered years.  The President of this Board of Directors shall be authorized 
to take any and all actions, and to execute any documents necessary, to assist the Agency’s 
General Manager in presenting this resolution to the Riverside County Board of Supervisors for 
its approval. 

4. The Secretary of the Board of Directors of Desert Water Agency shall transmit 
certified copies of this resolution to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors and to the Office of the 
Registrar of Voters for the County of Riverside. 

ADOPTED this ____ day of _________, 2017. 

_________________________________________ 
James Cioffi, President  
Board of Directors 
Desert Water Agency 

 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 
Board of Directors 
Desert Water Agency 



 

 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Sylvia Baca, Assistant Secretary of the Board of Directors of Desert Water Agency, do 
hereby certify that the attached is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 1153 adopted by said 
Board of Directors at its regularly scheduled meeting of ___________, 2017. 

______________________________ 
Sylvia Baca 
Assistant Secretary of the Board of Directors 
Desert Water Agency 


	022117 Board Agenda
	Item 2A 020717 Board Minutes
	MINUTES   2-A
	OF THE REGULAR MEETING
	Attendance

	Item 3 022117 GM Report
	FEBRUARY 21, 2017

	Item 4 021317 Exec Comm minutes
	Item 6 0221174 Treasurer Rpt
	Item 7A 022117 Abdelnour Retirement Staff report
	ADPD980.tmp
	MICHAEL J. ABDELNOUR


	Item 7B 022117 Reso 1151  - Support Nomin Melody McDonald ACWAJPIA staff report
	Item 7C 022117 Auth LAIF Signers staff report
	TO
	FEBRUARY 21, 2017
	ADP95AD.tmp
	LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND


	Item 7D 022117 Augment budget staff report
	TO
	FEBRUARY 21, 2017

	Item 8A 022117 January 2017 Production Staff Report
	Item 8B 022117 SB415 election date change staff report

